
1

MINUTES OF THE CITY OF DRIGGS
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 5, 2010

Pursuant to adjournment of the City Council meeting held December 15, 2009, and the
call of the Mayor, the Driggs City Council met in regular session Tuesday January 5,
2010, at 7:00 p.m. A roll call was taken and present were council members: George
Mosher, Dan Powers, Greer Jones and Colin Dye, Mayor Louis Christensen, City
Attorney Stephen Zollinger, Planning and Zoning Administrator Doug Self, Financial
Official Officer Amy Smith, Public Works Director Jared Gunderson and City Clerk
Sonya Adams. Mayor Louis Christensen led the Pledge of Allegiance.

MINUTES TO REVIEW
Council Members reviewed the minute from the City Council Meeting.

Council Member Dye made a motion to approve the minutes of the December 15, 2009
City Council Meeting. Council Member Mosher seconded the motion. The motion
passed unanimously.

CLAIMS REVIEW
Council members reviewed the claims.

Council Member Mosher made a motion to approve the claims as presented dated
December 16, 2009 through January 5, 2010. Council Member Jones seconded the
motion. The motion carried unanimously.

SWEARING-IN OF THE NEWLY ELECTED OFFICALS
Sonya Adams began by asking Daniel Powers to repeat the oath for the office of Mayor.

Mayor Powers appointed Jay Mazalewski to fill the Council Member seat for the
remainder of the term and asked the Council to ratify the vote. All were in favor.

Sonya Adams asked George Mosher, Greer Jones and Jay Mazalewski to repeat the oath
for the office of Council Member.

PUBLIC WORKS REPORT
Jared Gunderson stated the snow blower had been received. Mr. Gunderson would be
working with Scott Rogers regarding the issues with EPA and hoped they were “resolved
soon.” Lillian Bowen would be in town on the 17th of January and Mr. Gunderson stated
he would discuss with her the extra material at the airport. Mr. Gunderson stated that
another notice might need to be posted in the newspaper and/or utility bills regarding the
policy for towing vehicles during the winter months.

LOUIS SIMONET-PROPOSAL FOR MATERIALS
Louis Simonet, Teton County Engineer, spoke to the Council. He stated that the County
was in the process of finishing the Teton County Bridge and needed 2-inch rock. He felt



2

the extra material from the airport runway project was ideal to use. He proposed to the
Council a “2:1 Haul Ratio,” and figured that each load would take approximately 40-60
minutes to haul with a $60-65 dollar dump truck fee. He further explained that the
County would haul two loads for the bridge and one load for the City. He concluded by
stating that the County may have to wait to complete this proposal, depending on weather
and the workload of the Road and Bridge Department.

Mr. Gunderson felt there were plenty of materials for both the county and the city to use
and that the City would save the expense of having material hauled.

Council Member Mosher questioned the contract with Lillian Bowen regarding extra
materials. Stephen Zollinger stated that the contract “fell apart,” and that the City can
now deal with the material but must complete the clean-up 100% or have Ms. Bowen
complete it 100%. He further stated there was a “fundamental agreement with Ned
Thomas” which needed to be discussed. Mr. Zollinger concluded by stating that a
difference may be whether the City would be paying for the rental of Ned Thomas’
property or if the FAA would be paying.

ANNA TRENTADUE – VARD/SONORAN INSTITUE PROJECT
INFORMATION
Anna Trentadue presented information regarding the Sonoran Institute Project and
Lincoln Institute of Land Policy. She stated both agencies were aiding in reshaping
development patterns and have discussed the recent patterns of growth and it’s affects on
Teton Valley. One of the main focuses was how a development that has not been
completed should be dealt with. VARD (Valley Advocates for Responsible
Development) hosted a workshop in Salt Lake City and would use Teton County as a
case study for discussion.

Ms. Trentadue asked that a member of the City Council attend another workshop at Teton
Springs in March as they were looking for feedback from the City. She explained some
ideas that were discussed in Salt Lake City, which included having a tiered system for
impact fees and re-platting subdivisions.

REID ROGERS – SCENIC BYWAY PROJECT
Reid Rogers stated it was time to begin the construction process for the Scenic Byway
Project and would be writing a request for architectural services. Mr. Rogers stated that
four documents would be written and needed the City Council’s approval. Those
included documents for the tourism facility, the plaza and parking with other downtown
core pedestrian roadways and crosswalks, an agreement with the City of Driggs and
Nelson Engineering, and for the completion of the current Community Center.

Council Member Dye questioned why the proposal for the Community Center was in the
Jackson Hole Newspaper without being approved by the City Council. Mr. Rogers
explained that the newspaper did a story on the building and picked one architectural
drawing from those shown to the City Council previously, without his knowledge.



3

Mayor Daniel Powers stated he did not want to start a new addition to the building
without being able to finish the existing building. Mr. Rogers responded, stating that he
would like to see the two projects happen simultaneously. Mayor Powers stated that if
the financing for the interior could not be accomplished, the addition should not be
completed.

Drawings included in the information to the Council were explained. Mr. Rogers stated
the drawings were done to have a “scope of what we are looking for,” to include in the
RFQ.

PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
Bear Run Subdivision – Request for a 4-week extension to record the Final Plat
Doug Self explained that the developers of Bear Run Subdivision were asking for an
extension to file the Final Plat due to a boundary discrepancy. He requested giving the
applicant 8 weeks due to the holidays.

Council Member Mosher made a motion to give an extension to Bear Run Subdivision.
Council Member Jones seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor.

Huntsman Springs PUD-City Phase 1-Amended Development Agreement
Mr. Self stated the Development Agreement Amendment was for the PUD (Planned Unit
Development) for Phase 1. He gave the City Council more handouts and stated that Mr.
Zollinger had reviewed the agreement and did not find any issues with it. The parts being
amended included; a new timeline for development of the well, modifying the water
rights, handover of the road maintenance, construction of the sidewalks, and bonding for
the remaining infrastructure. Mr. Self asked Mr. Gunderson why the well issue was not
resolved. Mr. Gunderson stated that because there were no residential uses for the well, it
could not be shown as being used.

Council Member Mazalewski questioned if the City had accepted the roads within the
development. Mr. Gunderson stated that they were, with the exception of the drainage
and road signs, as stated in Mr. Self’s report.

Discussion of the process for a personal guarantee began. Mr. Zollinger explained that it
was a legally binding personal guarantee for the proposed bonding.

Council Member Mosher made a motion to approve the amended Development
Agreement for Huntsman Springs PUD, City Phase 1. Council Member Dye seconded
the motion. The motion passed with all in favor.

Mr. Self stated he received a request to be able to crush rock within Huntsman Springs.
He stated the location was near material piles west of Valley Centre Subdivision and that
the area was in the ADR .5 zone, with no allowance to crush rock. Mr. Self felt it would
be a good idea to be able to allow on-site rock crushing within a development if the use
had standards. This use would help to reduce truck traffic on city streets. He questioned
if the City Council would like the Planning and Zoning Commission to review this issue



4

further and suggested the Council decide if the use should require a Conditional Use
Permit. Council Member Mazalewski wanted to ensure the length of operation and
mitigating measures were addressed and enforceable.

Music on Main RFP
Mayor Powers stated that locations for Music on Main within the City of Driggs had been
discussed. He felt there were 5-6 good locations including; 300 Main, Game On, the old
high school football field, and property within Huntsman Springs. Council Members
made suggestions and Council Member Mosher stated he felt the location should be close
to the downtown core and Main Street, as it would aid in “traffic and allow other business
owners to have access to the activities.” Mayor Powers stated that the 300 Main location
met the requirements best, but he had reservations about the walking distance and did not
feel it was very “pedestrian or bike friendly.”

Mayor Powers asked the Council what attributes they felt were important and questioned
if it was more important to meet the requirements of the RFP or try to do what was best
for the downtown area. Council Member Mazalewski felt that Music on Main would be
beneficial to the downtown area and City of Driggs regardless of it’s location and felt the
requirements for the RFP should be met.

Council Member Jones stated that 300 Main was supposed to have an amphitheatre in the
future and may be a more permanent place for the event. Mayor Powers agreed stating
that if 300 Main were built it would shift the center of town. Mr. Self felt that the Teton
Valley Foundation would want to keep the event on Main Street.

It was questioned if 300 Main would be able to provide all of the requirements such as a
Green Room for the musicians. Mark Rockefeller responded stating that the conference
room could be used at Teton Valley Realty.

Mayor Powers stated he was trying to put together a citizen’s meeting to discuss the
options further and hoped to pick a location by the next City Council meeting.

Mr. Self concluded his report by stating that the North South Pathway and Main Street
projects are with ITD. The pathway would be much lower than Main Street and ITD
would be unable to do the fill. The Planning and Zoning Commission conditionally
approved the design for the Family Dollar store.

MAYOR’S REPORT
Mayor Powers stated that his main focus has been on the RFP for Music on Main. The
Urban Renewal Agency and the Airport Board need new members. The Planning and
Zoning Commissioners; Rick Baldwin, Rene Lusser and Rob Bottner, would like to be
re-appointed. Rob Bottner had requested a one-year term due to his schooling.

Mayor Powers asked that the Council ratify the Planning and Zoning
Commissioners terms. All were in favor.



5

ADJOURNMENT
Council Member Jones made a motion to adjourn. Council Member Mosher seconded
the motion. The motion passed with all in favor and the meeting was adjourned at
9:10pm.

ATTEST:

__________________________________ ______________________________
Sonya Adams, City Clerk Daniel J. Powers, Mayor


